
 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Monday, 21 June 2021 

Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

Virtual Meeting 

11 June 2021 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

4. Declaration of Interests:  

 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

5. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

7. Refreshed Community Safety Strategy (Pages 7 - 36) 

8. Climate Change Action Plan (Part 1) (Pages 37 - 72) 

9. Work Programme (Pages 73 - 74) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 
 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



 
Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor D Shaw (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley 
Councillor G Heath Councillor I Herdman 
Councillor K Hoptroff Councillor B A Hughes 
Councillor A Hulme Councillor B Johnson 
Councillor J T Jones Councillor K Martin 
Councillor T Riley Councillor P Roberts 
Councillor L Swindlehurst Councillor P Taylor 
Councillor R Ward Councillor P Wood 
Councillor N Yates  

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

MONDAY, 22 MARCH 2021 
 
PRESENT: Councillor D Shaw (Chair)   
 
 Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, G Heath, I Herdman, K Hoptroff, 

B A Hughes, B Johnson, J T Jones, K Martin, T McNicol, T Riley, 
P Roberts, L Swindlehurst, P Taylor and R Ward. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors M Bowen, I Plant, J Porter, S Scalise and E Fallows 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillor P Wood 
 

33 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 
 
There were none. 
 

34 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
DECIDED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on the 1st February 

2021 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

35 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE STAFFORDSHIRE POLICE, 
FIRE AND CRIME PANEL. 
 
DECIDED: That the minutes from the last meeting of the Staffordshire Police, Fire 

and Crime Panel be NOTED. 
 

36 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 
 
No urgent items had been received. 
 

37 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 
 
None were disclosed. 
 

38 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 
No questions had been received. 
 

39 HOUSEHOLD DUTY OF CARE. 
 
David Smith – Principal Officer Communities and Partnerships, introduced a report to 
members which detailed the prevention of unlawful deposal of waste within the District by 
fixed penalty notices that could be issued to those individuals that did not take reasonable 
measures to ensure proper disposal of their household waste. Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 March 2021 
 

2 
 

 
Occupiers of domestic properties in England had a duty to take reasonable care of 
the waste that they produced (the ‘household duty of care’).  
 
Anyone who failed to comply with the household duty was liable on conviction to an 
unlimited fine. As an alternative to prosecution, local authorities had the power to 
issue a fixed penalty notice. 
 
Currently, the fixed penalty amount was set by statute at £200 with no reduction for 
early payment. 
 
Some members reported that fly-tipping had become more prevalent, particularly the 
disposal of garden waste on footpaths and questioned the level of resource to 
uphold the legislation. In response, the Officer advised that fixed penalties could be 
issued by one member of staff. However, Alliance Environmental Services (AES) 
staff, which were trained to gather evidence, provided the initial response to reports 
of inappropriately disposed waste. 
 
The Panel was given the statistical information on the number of investigations 
carried out over the last 3 years. A spike in the level of fly-tipping had been seen 
during the first lockdown, which was attributed to the closure of household recycling 
centres but despite the re-opening, the level of refuse inappropriately disposed of 
had remained high.  
 
Successful community litter picks were noted by members and it was reported that a 
prompt service for the collection of rubbish had been received from AES. It was felt 
that the number of fixed penalty notices issued was low and there was a suggestion 
for increased promotion of enforcement activity. 
 
DECIDED:  
 

1) The Panel recommended that Cabinet sets the fixed penalty amount for 
failure to comply with the household duty of care at the maximum permitted 
level of £400; 

2) For the number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued over the last few years be 
circulated to the Panel. 

 
40 CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN. 

 
It was the intention for the Climate Change Action Plan to be considered at this 
meeting. However, it had been decided that it would be postponed until the next 
meeting. 
 
The Action Plan was in 2 parts: - 
 

1) Concerned the Council’s own emissions, enabling actions, staff skills and 
policies; 

2) Considered wider green-house gas emissions for the District as a whole. 
 
Mark Forrester, Head of Democratic and Community Services, explained that the 
second part of the Action Plan would be ready for public consultation in the summer 
with a view to finalise the Plan by late Autumn. 
 

Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 March 2021 
 

3 
 

The Council had engaged with a company called Anthesis to carry out analysis using 
a toolkit called SCATTER (Setting City Area Targets and Trajectories). Plans were 
also in place to review the Council’s carbon emissions related to procurement.  
 
A meeting had been arranged to discuss the detailed feedback received from 
Moorlands Climate Action Group. 
 
Some members raised their concerns in relation to the connectivity between the 
Working Group and Sub-Groups, what would be contained within the Green 
Infrastructure Plan and the length of time it had taken for documents to be produced.  
 
The importance of a continuous feedback loop and the sharing of ideas was 
highlighted, and for consideration to be given to the future of the Climate Change 
Working Group. Other members reported that the various groups had worked 
together positively and looked forward to the plans coming together in the next few 
months.  
 
Councillor Health offered to circulate details on a paper produced by the NFU called 
net zero and agriculture. 
 
DECIDED: That the update be noted. 
 
 

41 WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed. 
 
DECIDED: That the Work Programme for 2020-21 be agreed. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 6.50 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

21 June 2021 
 

 
TITLE: 

 
Community Safety Partnership Review and 
Refreshed Community Safety Strategy 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Bowen -Cabinet Member for 
Communities 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
David Smith - Principal Officer Communities 
& Partnerships 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
All 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Community Safety Partnership Plan; 
Appendix B: Community Safety Partnership Strategy;  Appendix C: 
Summary of Council’s Contribution to the Community Safety Partnership 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 The District Council is required by statute to work in partnership with other 
listed organisations to tackle community safety problems in Staffordshire Moorlands. 
The Council’s corporate plan committed the Council to ‘Review the Council’s 
community safety arrangements in order to maintain strong partnerships with 
community groups’. This report supports the delivery of that commitment. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Committee notes: 

 the Community Safety Partnership’s strategy and plan; and  

 the contributions that the Council makes towards community safety. 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The District Council has three main duties in relation to community safety and 

must: 
 

 work with partners to formulate and implement a community safety 

strategy (Section 8); 

 ensure that it has a committee to scrutinise crime and disorder matters at 

least once a year  (Section 9); and 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



  

 consider the crime and disorder implications when exercising its 

functions (Section 10). 

3.2 The District Council discharges its duty to work with partners to formulate and 
implement a community safety strategy through its involvement in the 
Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership. Appendix 
C provides a summary of the Council’s contributions to the Partnership. 

 
3.3 The Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel scrutinises crime and disorder 

matters at least once a year. The Committee receives an annual report on the 
activity of the Community Safety Partnership as well as an annual update from 
Staffordshire Police. 
 

3.4 Every Committee report includes a section on community safety implications, 
which ensure that such considerations form part of the Council’s decision 
making process. This includes evaluating the impact of regeneration, asset 
management or planning policies.  

 
3.5 The Council provides a range of services that contribute to improving the 

safety of Staffordshire Moorlands. This includes CCTV in town centres across 
the District, the work of the Democratic and Communities Service, licensing 
taxis and places that sell alcohol, responding to statutory nuisances, 
supporting the homeless, and providing support to vulnerable people and 
those at risk of becoming involved in crime and anti-social behaviour. 
 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 This report helps to deliver Aim 1: ‘To help create a safer and healthier 

environment for our communities to live and work’ and specifically the 
commitment to: “Review the Council’s community safety arrangements in 
order to maintain strong partnerships with community groups”.  
 

5. Alternative Options 
 
5.1 None identified 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The report describes how the Council meets its obligations under 
the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
None  

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
None 
 

Page 8



  

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None – all commitments are made from within current budgets. 
The Partnership also receives specific funding from Staffordshire’s 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The District Council is required to work in partnership to tackle 
community safety issues by the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and 
associated regulations. 
 
The District Council has a duty under s17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions with regard to the likely 
effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all 
that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder, substance 
misuse and re-offending. 
 
The Council must also ensure that it has a committee to scrutinise 
crime and disorder matters at least once a year under the Police 
and Justice Act 2006. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
The Partnership duties include a requirement to tackle behaviour 
that spoils the local environment like dumping rubbish. The Council 
intends to continue to influence the Partnership’s priorities to 
include a greater emphasis on both the local environment and 
climate change. 
 
The Partnership will take into account climate change issues when 
designing and delivering projects of services. This could include 
looking at opportunities for promoting climate change awareness 
and action when commissioning diversionary activities, and 
checking that any contractors are taking steps to contribute to the 
agenda. 
 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
The Partnership Plan and Strategy have been shared with and 
agreed by community safety partners. 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
The change of Police and Crime Commissioner is likely to have 
some impact on the work of the Partnership and possibly to 
partnership funding. The Partnership will reflect any changes in 
approach when developing its future plans. 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

Page 9



  

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-
content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-
6.pdf 
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/get-
involved/community-funding/ 

David Smith 
Principal Officer Communities & Partnerships 
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
7. Community Safety 
 
7.1 The District Council has three main duties in relation to community safety and 

must: 
 

 work with partners to formulate and implement a community safety 

strategy (Section 8); 

 ensure that it has a committee to scrutinise crime and disorder matters at 

least once a year  (Section 9); and 

 consider the crime and disorder implications when exercising its 

functions (Section 10). 

7.2 The Council also has a general duty to promote and improve the economic, 
social or environmental wellbeing of the Staffordshire Moorlands and specific 
obligations in relation to various functions that contribute towards making 
communities safer, such as licensing. This report primarily focuses on the 
specific obligations highlighted above.  

 
8 Working in Partnership 
 
8.1 The District Council discharges its duty to work with partners to formulate and 

implement a community safety strategy through its involvement in the 
Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership. 

 
8.2 The term Community Safety Partnership1 (CSP) is not used in legislation and 

a CSP is not a legal entity. Rather, it is the collective term used to describe 
multi-agency arrangements that allow specified organisations (“the responsible 
authorities”) to fulfil their statutory obligations under the CDA and associated 
regulations.  

 
8.3 The responsible authorities for the purposes of the Act are the: 

 District Council 

 County Council 

 Chief officer of police 

 Providers of probation services under section 3 of the Offender 

Management Act 2007 

 Fire and Rescue Authority; and 

 Every Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) that covers the whole or any 

part of the area. 

                                            
1
 CSPs are sometimes referred to as Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRPs) or Safer 

and Stronger Communities Partnerships. 

Page 10

https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-6.pdf
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-6.pdf
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-6.pdf
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/get-involved/community-funding/
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/get-involved/community-funding/


  

8.4 These responsible authorities must also act in co-operation with the relevant 
local probation board, specified providers of probation services, and anyone 
prescribed by order by the Secretary of State. 

 
8.5 The CSP members are required to work together to formulate and implement 

a strategy at District level for: 

 Reducing crime and disorder in the area (including anti-social and other 

behaviour adversely affecting the local environment);  

 Combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in the 

area; and 

 Reducing re-offending in the area. 

8.6 This work is carried out on behalf of the responsible authorities by a strategy 
group2 that is appointed to prepare an annual strategic assessment, prepare 
and implement a partnership plan, review the expenditure of partnership 
monies, and assess the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of partnership 
expenditure. 

 
8.9 The current membership of the Strategy Group is as follows: 
 

 Councillor Mike Bowen (Chair), Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

 County Councillor Ross Ward, Staffordshire County Council 

 Mark Trillo, Executive Director, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

 Jill Norman, North Staffordshire Operations Manager, Support 

Staffordshire 

 Sarah Wilks, Head of Engagement, Peak District National Park Authority 

 Helen Chadwick and , Station Manager, Staffordshire Fire and Rescue 
Service 

 Chief Inspector Mark Thorley, Staffordshire Police. 

8.10 Officer support for the group is provided by Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council and Staffordshire County Council. 

 
8.11 The Partnership has adopted the following vision: 
 

Our Vision is for Staffordshire Moorlands to be a place where people feel safe 

and supported, the diversity of our community is valued, and our environment 

is protected. 

8.12 The Partnership follows a three-tier approach to enable it to achieve its vision, 
and looks to: 

 

 PREVENT problems from occurring in the first place (Primary prevention).  

 REDUCE the impact of community safety problems (Secondary 

prevention) 

                                            
2
 Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 2007 

Page 11



  

 SUPPORT those affected by problems and provide support to help stop 

people from reoffending (Tertiary prevention).  

8.13 Each year, the CSP updates its priorities and partnership plan. The delivery of 
the 2020/21 plan was hampered by the Coronavirus pandemic and associated 
lockdown and several actions have been rolled-over to the 2021/22 plan. This 
year, the partnership has also refreshed its strategy (Appendix A).The plan, 
which can be found at Appendix B, describes how the Partnership intends to 
address the following priorities: 

 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

 Domestic Abuse 

 Rural Crime (including burglary and vehicle theft) 

 Fraud 

 Vulnerable People 

 
Partnership Support 
 
8.14 The District Council provides administrative support to the partnership. This 

includes: 

 Preparing the Partnership Plan and Strategy; 

 Holding Partnership funds, overseeing expenditure, and accounting to 
the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner; 

 Completing annual evaluation of expenditure; 

 Reporting on partnership activity to the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 
Committee; 

 Representing the partnership at County and other meetings; 

 Arranging partnership meetings; and 

 Minute-taking. 
 
8.15 Appendix C provides a summary of the Council’s contributions to the 

Community Safety Partnership. 
 
9 Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters 
 
9.1 The Council must ensure that it has a committee to scrutinise crime and 

disorder matters at least once a year. The Committee must have the power to: 
 

 review or scrutinise how the responsible authorities discharge their crime 
and disorder functions and make reports or recommendations to the local 
authority about the discharge of those functions; 

 make a report or recommendations to the local authority concerning 
crime and disorder (including in particular forms of crime and disorder 
that involve antisocial behaviour or other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), or the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other 
substances that affects all or part of their ward. Any member of the 
authority who is not a member of the crime and disorder committee can 
also refer any such matter to the committee; and 

Page 12



  

 require the attendance of an officer or employee of a responsible 
authority or of a co-operating person or body in order to answer 
questions provided that reasonable notice is given. 

 
9.2 In all cases where the Committee makes a report or recommendations then it 

must provide a report to each responsible authority and co-operating body. 
 
9.3 The Communities Overview & Scrutiny fulfils the Council’s obligations under 

the Police and Justice Act 20063. The Committee receives an annual report on 
the activity of the Community Safety Partnership as well as an annual update 
from Staffordshire Police. 

 
10 The Effect of the Council’s Functions on Community Safety 
 
10.1 The District Council has a duty to exercise its functions with regard to the likely 

effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it 
reasonably can to prevent: 
(a) crime and disorder (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely 

affecting the local environment);  
(b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances; and 
(c) re-offending, in its area. 

 
10.2 Every Committee report includes a section on community safety implications, 

which ensure that such considerations form part of the Council’s decision 
making process. This includes evaluating the impact of regeneration, asset 
management or planning policies. 

 
10.3 The Council’s actions under each of the above heads is considered below. 
 
A Crime and Disorder 
 
10.4 The police have primary responsibility for responding to crime and disorder. 

The College of Policing describes the police’s core operational duties as 
being: 

 protecting life and property 
 preserving order 
 preventing the commission of offences; and 
 bringing offenders to justice. 

10.5 The District Council is responsible for wide a range of services. Many of these 
services can support work to tackle crime and disorder through the discharge 
of regulatory functions and by providing support for the work of Moorlands 
Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership. 

 
10.6 The Council also provides a case management function in response to reports 

that it receives about anti-social behaviour. The Council will liaise both 
internally and externally, with agencies such as Staffordshire Police, to seek to 
resolve issues. The Council received 123 reports of anti-social behaviour on 

                                            
3
 Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 

Page 13



  

the year to 15 June 2021 from members of the public via the reporting portal 
on the Council’s website. 

 
10.7 The Council has powers under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 

Act 2014 to issue Community Protection Notices, and apply for injunctions or 
Closure Orders in response to problems. Other agencies, notably Staffordshire 
Police, also have access to the same powers. The District Council is the only 
authority with the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order to 
introduce prohibitions and requirements in response to unreasonable conduct 
that has a detrimental impact in public places within the District. The District 
Council has, for example, used this power to address dog fouling and to 
prevent wildfires. 

 
CCTV 
 
10.8 The District Council makes a substantial contribution to preventing crime and 

disorder by providing a District-wide CCTV system. The system has 40 
cameras that record images across the District with 24/7 monitoring from the 
control centre. The control room and cameras are in the process of being 
upgraded from analogue to digital at a cost of around £275,000.4  

 
10.9 The following table shows the number of incidents recorded by the CCTV 

system across the Staffordshire Moorlands. 
 

 

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

Leek 134 126 82 57 

Biddulph 32 35 38 11 

Cheadle 32 30 31 17 

Werrington 3 4 0 0 

Cheddleton 0 0 0 0 

Blythe Bridge 4 8 5 1 

Forsbrook 1 0 0 0 

Brown Edge 2 3 0 0 

Total 208 206 156 86 

 
 
10.10 The following table depicts the number of downloads by the Staffordshire 

Police:   
 

 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

Downloads 462 227 129 62 

 
Environmental Crime 
 
10.11 The definition of crime and disorder includes behaviour adversely affecting the 

local environment. The District Council takes the lead role in responding to 
such matters, which are often at the top of the community’s priorities for action 

                                            
4
 The cost of upgrading the control room is shared equally with High Peak Borough Council. The on-

going yearly operational costs will reduce from £177,000 to around £30,000 once the upgrade has 
been completed. 

Page 14



  

and include dog fouling, litter, waste disposal, contaminated land and statutory 
nuisances (including noise). The following table provides details of some of the 
Council’s work to tackle environmental crime5. 

 

Type of Action 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Fly tipping 
investigations 

290 359 557 

Dog Fouling FPN 3 6 3 

Litter Only FPN 55 60 15 

Duty Of Care FPN 2 3 0 

Abandoned Vehicles 
 Investigated 
 Disposed  

151 
N/A 

166 
1 

218 
1 

 
10.12 The local authority also has a duty to inspect its area for statutory nuisance 

which includes investigating noise. The Council responded to around 600 
complaints about statutory nuisance/pollution in 2020. 

 
Dangerous Building and Untidy sites 
 
10.13 The District Council can take action in respect of dangerous buildings that 

could be a target for criminal and anti-social behaviour using its building 
control powers under the Building Act 1984. Actions can also be taken as a 
planning authority to rectify untidy sites, which can be locations for criminal 
activity.  

 
Licensing 
 
10.14 The overriding aim of the Council’s licensing function is the protection of the 

public. 
 
10.15 The Licensing Act 2003 regulates the sale of alcohol, the supply of alcohol by 

or on behalf of a club, the provision of regulated entertainment and the 
provision of late night refreshment. The District Council is the designated 
licensing authority under the Act and this function is considered further below.  

 
10.16 The District Council is also responsible for promoting public safety through the 

licensing of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles. The Authority will not 
grant a licence to drive a vehicle unless satisfied that the applicant is ‘safe and 
suitable’. This includes requiring an Enhanced DBS check for all drivers and 
compliance with the Council’s code of conduct. 

                                            
5
 The reduction in activity in 2020/21 is primarily related to Covid restrictions. The Enforcement 

Officers were not able to carry out patrols at certain times of the year, and at the same time the footfall 
in many hot spot areas, such as littering in town centres, was much reduced. When patrolling was 
possible, officers were instructed to maintain social distancing and to issue fixed penalty notices by 
post rather than face-to-face. This made enforcement more difficult. 

Page 15



  

 
10.17 All drivers in the District are required to attend an approved safeguarding 

course and to complete and pass either the BTEC Level 2 certificate in the 
introduction to the role of the Professional Taxi or Private Hire Driver or the 
NVQ level 2 certificates in Road Passenger Vehicle Driving (Taxi and Private 
Hire Driver) or an equivalent qualification. This ensures that drivers have an 
awareness of safeguarding and how to provide safety and security for 
passengers  

 
10.18 An applicant who fails to meet all required tests, conditions, code of conduct 

and standards will not be deemed a safe and suitable person and the 
application for a licence or renewal will be refused. 

 
10.19 The District Council is also responsible for regulating scrap metal dealers 

under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. Every scrap metal dealer is required 
to have a licence and operating without one will be a criminal offence. The 
District Council can refuse to grant a licence where the applicant is judged not 
to be a suitable person to operate as a scrap metal dealer. The licensing of 
dealers contributes to community safety by helping to make it more difficult to 
commit crimes such as metal theft, fraud and money laundering. 

 
Physical Activity and Support 
 
10.20 The Council’s leisure provision can help with diverting people from crime and 

rehabilitating victims of crime. Involvement in physical activities can provide 
positive role models, teach life skills, offer diversion and safety, build 
confidence and encourage self-discipline. The Council’s physical activity and 
sport strategy (‘Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands’) recognises that 
physical activity and sport can also play a big part in enhancing relationships 
and social networks, which can create safer and stronger communities.  

 
10.21 Some key outputs of the Council’s strategy include: 
 

 Increased outreach work undertaken by leisure centre staff in the priority 

places in partnership with the Council and local community partners, 

 Lex Leisure installed a new 3G football facility at Brough Park Leisure 

Centre which saw bookings grow by over 50%, 

 Over £1.1 million worth of capital improvements to parks and recreation 

facilities at a range of locations across the district, 

 Provision of the annual Staffordshire Moorlands Sports Awards to 

celebrate the contribution and achievements of clubs, coaches, team and 

athletes from across the Moorlands. 

 
B Misuse of Drugs, Alcohol and other Substances 
 
10.22 The District Council is the designated licensing authority for the Staffordshire 

Moorlands and, as such, is responsible for developing a local policy, 
processing applications and convening hearings to consider any 
representations concerning applications or existing licences. The licensing 
authority must promote the licensing objectives when carrying out its duties: 

Page 16



  

 

 the prevention of crime and disorder; 

 public safety; 

 the prevention of public nuisance; 

 the protection of children from harm. 

 
C Re-offending 
 
10.23 Research on the reasons for re-offending has led to the identification of seven 

pathways for reducing re-offending: 
 

Pathway 1: Accommodation (stable accommodation can reduce the 
likelihood of re-offending by more than 20% as it provides the 
vital building blocks for accessing a range of other services 
and for gaining employment). 

Pathway 2: Education, training and employment  
Pathway 3: Health (Offenders are disproportionately more likely to suffer 

from mental and physical problems) 
Pathway 4: Drugs and alcohol 
Pathway 5: Finance, benefit and debt (Ensuring that ex-offenders have 

sufficient lawful funds to live on is recognised as vital to their 
rehabilitation.) 

Pathway 6: Children and families (maintaining family relationships can 
help to prevent prisoners re-offending and can assist them to 
successfully settle into the community). 

Pathway 7: Attitudes, thinking and behaviour (Offending behaviour 
programmes within prison and probation aim to change the 
way that offenders think about their actions and their effects 
on others, and to improve their self-control). 

 
10.24 The District Council plays an important role in supporting Pathways 1 and 5. 

The Council can also assist in tackling alcohol misuse through its licensing 
function and the work of the Regeneration Service can support Pathway 2 
through the creation of employment opportunities. This work not only assists in 
reducing recidivisms but may also help to prevent individuals from entering 
into the criminal justice system in the first place. 

 
Accommodation 
 
10.25 The District Council has a duty to take reasonable steps to help prevent any 

eligible person who is threatened with homelessness from becoming 
homeless. This means either helping them to stay in their current 
accommodation or helping them to find a new place to live before they 
become actually homeless. If someone becomes unintentionally homeless 
then the Council will take reasonable steps to help them to secure 
accommodation.  

 
 
 
 

Page 17



  

Finance, benefits and debt 
 
10.26 The District Council administers the housing benefit and council tax reduction 

schemes for eligible Staffordshire Moorlands residents. The Council has also 
administered the Test and Trace Self-Isolation Support Payment Scheme 
during the pandemic. 

 
10.27 The Council can also assist in the delivery of the other pathways by supporting 

the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) Sector and through 
its involvement in key partnerships such as Moorlands Together. For example, 
the Council provide funding for the three Citizens Advice services within the 
District, Support Staffordshire and Haregate Community Centre. 

 

Page 18



                                   
  Partnership Plans 2021 to 2022 
 

Moorlands CSP Delivery Plan 2021-22  online 
 

 
The Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership (CSP) is made up of a number of 
organisations that work together to make our district safer. These organisations include Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council, Staffordshire County Council, Staffordshire Police, Your Housing Group, Staffordshire Housing 
Group, Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service, local Clinical Commissioning Group and probation service providers. 
Funding to support partnership activity is provided by Staffordshire Commissioner for Police, Fire and Crime and 
by individual agencies through mainstream budgets. 
 
The Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Strategy Group considers the information contained 
within an annual strategic assessment to establish local priorities. The priorities are then reflected in the community 
safety partnership plan, which sets out what the CSP will do to address these priorities. There are five main 
priorities for 2021/22 :  
 
The strategic priorities for Staffordshire Moorlands CSP for 2021/2022:  
 Anti-Social Behaviour 
 Domestic Abuse 
 Rural Crime (including burglary and vehicle theft) 
 Fraud 
 Vulnerable People 
 
The Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership Plan builds on the five priorities set out in 
the Staffordshire Commissioner for Police, Fire and Crime’s Safer, Fairer, United Communities Strategy. These are: 

• Early intervention and Prevention - preventing crime and antisocial behaviour and providing early help to 
individuals, families and communities before problems become entrenched, more complex and costly to 
resolve. 

• Supporting victims and witnesses- ensuring that victims, witnesses and their families are supported in 
a way that recognises their individual circumstances and places them at the very heart of all criminal justice 
processes. 

• Managing offending and reoffending- being able to reduce offending and reoffending in Staffordshire 
and Stoke-on-Trent. 

P
age 19

https://www.staffordshire-pcc.gov.uk/saferfairerunited/


                           Page 2  
 

• Public confidence- ensuring that the people of Staffordshire are better informed and involved in how 
policing and community safety arrangements are delivered, helping thereby to increase public confidence 
and reduce the fear of crime. 

• Modernised policing- a modern and transformed police service fit for a changing future, able to address 
existing and new issues and the threat and harm that impact from local, regional, national and international 
criminal activity. 

It should be acknowledged some activity is centrally commissioned and the Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger 
Communities Partnership plan aims to compliment, not duplicate, any activity based on local needs.  
 
The CSP will also be adopting a Place Based approach with public services working in partnership with each other, 
the voluntary and business sectors and communities to plan, design, resource, build and deliver services around 
people, families and communities in the most disadvantaged communities to support them to improve their life 
opportunities and outcomes.  
 
If you wish to contact the Local Community Safety Partnership please contact:  
 
David Smith 
Principal Officer Communities and Partnerships 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
Moorlands House 
Stockwell Street 
LEEK 
ST13 6HQ 
Telephone: 01538 395695 
Email: Community.Safety@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 
  

P
age 20

mailto:Community.Safety@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


                           Page 3  
 

1) Anti-social Behaviour 
Priority Areas: 
1.1 Diversionary activity  
1.2 Positive Engagement 
1.3 Enforcement 
1.4 Reduce problems in the town centres 
 Aims Activity Lead Performance Measures Assumptions and Key Risks 
1.1 Reduce number of calls to 

police about ASB caused by 
young people in hot-spot 
areas 
 
 
 

Targeted  outreach programme 
in hot spot areas at key times  
 
 
 
 
 

SMDC 
(Commission 
services on behalf 
of CSP) 

Reduction in ASB 
Number of attendees at 
sessions 
Case studies 
Completed evaluation 

Funding suitable suppliers to 
deliver services fit for purpose 
and have the desired outcomes 
 
ASB hot spots are caused by the 
activities of young people 

1.2 Prevent ASB on new 
recreational facilities and 
create a positive environment 
for all 

Positively engage adults/young 
people in locations where 
improvements to recreational 
facilities is or has taken place to 
create better links and more 
community ownership of the 
facilities    

SMDC Parks & 
Countryside 
CSP 

Number of people engaged 
Number of events 

BMX track will be built this year 
as dependant on funding 

1.3 Take action against those 
persistently engaging in ASB 

Enforcement  
 
External legal support for: 
• Applications for  Anti-Social 

Behaviour Injunctions 
• Prosecutions  for breach of 

Community Protection Notice 
• Prosecutions for failure to 

comply with Public Spaces 
Protection Orders, etc 

SMDC  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Number of Injunctions 
 
Number of Community 
Protection Notice Warnings 
 
Number of Community 
Protection Notices 
 

Courts will not grant 
injunctions/orders 
Legal costs could escalate as 
cases are particularly complex  

1.4 Develop and deliver a 
campaign focusing on 
reducing Town Centre 
violence 

Intoxicated 
Roll out the successful 
Intoxicated scheme to other 
areas (including Biddulph and 
Cheadle) 

Police 
SMDC 

Reduction in town centre 
anti-social behaviour and 
violence 
 

Partners are willing to support 
the activity 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2) Domestic Abuse 

P
age 21



                           Page 4  
 

         Link with county wide Domestic Abuse recommissioning 
Priority Areas: 
2.1 children affected by domestic abuse 
 Aims Activity Lead Performance Measures Assumptions and Key Risks 
2.1 To provide support for 

children affected by domestic 
abuse  

Provision of children’s worker 
to provide targeted support 

SMDC 
(Commission 
services on behalf 
of CSP) 

Number of children 
supported 

Appropriate service can be 
commissioned 

 
 

3) Rural Crime 
 
Priority Areas: 
3.1        Countryside Problem Solving Group 
 Aims Activity Lead Performance Measures Assumptions and Key Risks 
3.3 Reduce rural crime and anti-

social behaviour 
Facilitate a multi-agency group 
to adopt a problem solving 
approach to tackling rural 
issues that cause significant 
concerns in our rural 
communities  
 
Develop and deliver Problem 
Solving Plan 

SMDC 
Staffordshire 
Wildlife 
Police 
Peak District 
National Park 
Authority 
FARS 

Projects delivered 
Campaign messages and 
reductions in calls for 
services/complaints 
 

Covid continues to cause a vast 
increase in footfall to our rural 
beauty spots.  
 
Lack of funding to develop ideas 
to tangible projects 

  
 

4) Fraud 
Priority Areas: 
4.1   Illegal money lending, fraud, Scam  and Cyber crime Awareness 
 Aims Activity Lead Performance Measures Assumptions and Key Risks 
4.1 Raise awareness of potential 

threats that target the 
vulnerable people within our 
communities  (Fraud, Scams  
and Cyber crime  
Illegal money lending) 

Fraud, Scam  and Cyber 
crime Awareness  
Illegal Money Lending 
Team 

CSP 
NatWest Bank 
Digital PCSO 
Illegal Money 
Lending Team 
 

Number of events 
Number of attendees 
Areas targeted 
Material produced locally  

Needs to be linked with the 
County forum of Online Fraud 
Forum. 
 
Education dependant on external 
partners providing FOC 

 
 
 
 

5) Vulnerable People   
Priority Areas: 

P
age 22



                           Page 5  
 

5.1 Raise awareness of healthy relationships and mutual consent 
5.2 Education around Community Safety – Safe & Sound 
5.3 Prevent 
5.4 Hate Crime/ASB 
 Aims Activity Lead Performance Measures Assumptions and Key Risks 
5.1 Raise awareness of healthy 

relationships and mutual 
consent /respect- (trust, 
honesty, support, 
fairness/equality and non-
bulling behaviour). 

Education workshops: 
Sexting and the 
consequence 
Bullying/Cyber bullying 

CSP Commission  
 
 

Number of schools 
Number of pupils 
 
 
 

Schools willing to take part and 
agreeing to host the 
performances  
 
Establish the provider - Sexting 
and the consequence 

5.2 Raise awareness to year 6 
pupils focusing on following 
prioritises: 

Safe & Sound 
• Sessions run online with 

topics relevant to improve 
safety for year 6 pupils 

FARS 
CSP 

Number of schools 
Number of pupils attending 
Evaluations from event 

Schools will be willing to attend 
the event and pay for transport. 
 
Partner agencies currently 
working in the area will support 
the event to keep costs to a 
minimum. 
 
FARS will co-ordinate the 
planning of the event and provide 
all relevant resource.  

5.3 Prevent Awareness campaign CSP Number of people 
attending event and 
evaluation 

Partner agencies will support and 
attend the event  

5.4 To give victims of hate 
crime/ASB specialist support 

Commission a Service to 
deal with victims of Hate 
Crime/ASB 

SCC TBC The tender process will begin in 
March 
 
Mobilisation of service is due to 
commence in October 2021 
 

 
 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Our Vision, Our Plan, Our Promise, Our Actions

Working together to make Staffordshire Moorlands a place where people feel safe and 
supported, the diversity of our community is valued, and our environment is protected

2021 to 2024

P
age 25



2

A word from our Chair
Staffordshire Moorlands is a beautiful part of 
the country and we want to make sure that 
anyone who lives in, works in, or visits our 
district can do so without worrying about their 
safety. This plan will help us to do that.

We work together, in partnership, to focus on 
those problems that are of most concern to 
you. We believe that we are stronger when 
we work together and are better equipped to 
achieve our vision for Staffordshire Moorlands.

Cllr Mike Bowen  –  
Chair of the Community Safety Partnership and 
Cabinet Member for Communities.

CONTENTS
Our Vision 4

Who are we? 4

Our Plan 5

What do we need to do? 5

Our Priorities 5

National drivers 5

Countywide drivers 6

Covid-19 6

How will we do it? 7

PREVENT  7

REDUCE 8

SUPPORT 8

How will we work together? 9

How will you know that we’ve  
done what we set out to do? 9

What do we need to deliver our plan? 9

Our Promise 10

Planning what we do 10

Taking action 10

Reporting 
back to you 10

P
age 26



3

Our Promise
We will work together to:

Focus on the most important problems 
in Staffordshire Moorlands. Talk to our 
communities about local problems, Take early 
action, Provide support for those who most 
need our help, Work with offenders to stop 
them from committing more crime, Work with 
our communities to tackle problems together, 
Hold a public meeting once a year, Provide our 
community with information about what we are 
doing

Responsible authorities:
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, 
Staffordshire County Council, The Chief Officer 
of Staffordshire Police, Providers of probation 
services; and NHS North Staffordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG)

Strategy Group members:
Cabinet Member for Communities, SMDC 
(Chair); Executive Director, SMDC; County 
Councillor, SCC; LPT Commander, Staffordshire 
Police; Station Managers, Staffordshire Fire 
and Rescue Service, Head of Engagement, 
Peak District National Park Authority; North 
Staffordshire Operations Manager, Support 
Staffordshire.

Our Plan (strategy)
We believe that we can achieve our vision if we:

PREVENT problems from occurring in the first 
place (Primary prevention). 

REDUCE the impact of community safety 
problems (Secondary prevention)

SUPPORT those affected by problems and 
provide support to help stop people from 
reoffending (Tertiary prevention). 

Key Areas (Statutory Requirements)
We will work together to formulate and 
implement a strategy at borough level for:

• Reducing crime improving safety

• Reducing disorder including anti-social and 
other behaviour adversely affecting the local 
environment 

• Combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol and 
other substances in the area

• Preventing re-offending

Responding to any cross-cutting issues, such as 
mental health, and involving the community and 
voluntary sector

Our Priorities
Acquisitive and Drug-Related Crime, Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Domestic Abuse, Personal Safety, 
Preventing re-offending, Rural Problems

is for Staffordshire Moorlands to be a place 
where people feel safe and supported, the 

diversity of our community is valued, and our 
environment is protected

shows how we will deliver our vision.

tells you how we will work together to plan, take 
action, and report back to you.

shows what we will do during the year to deliver 
the things that we set out in our plan.

Our Vision

Our Plan

Our Promise

Our Actions

Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership’

P
age 27



4

OUR VISION
Our Vision is for Staffordshire Moorlands to be a place where people feel safe 
and supported, the diversity of our community is valued, and our environment is 
protected.

WHO ARE WE?
Every district in the country must have a 
partnership (a group of organisations) that 
meets to look at crime and disorder issues. We 
call our partnership the Staffordshire Moorlands 
Community Safety Partnership.

The organisations that must work together 
in the partnership are set down by law. These 
organisations are known as the “responsible 
authorities” and are:

• Staffordshire Moorlands District Council

• Staffordshire County Council

• The Chief Officer of Staffordshire Police

• Providers of probation services; and

• NHS North Staffordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG). 

There are lots of other organisations who work 
with the responsible authorities to make our 
District safer. These include community groups, 
residents associations, parish and town councils, 
schools and colleges, and organisations such as:

• Support Staffordshire;

• Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service;

• Your Housing Group;

• New Era (Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent)

• HM Prison & Probation Service;

• Peak District National Park Authority; and

• Staffordshire Police, Fire & Crime 
Commissioner.

Our Vision

P
age 28



5

OUR PLAN
WHAT DO WE NEED TO DO?
By law, we must work together to tackle:

• crime and disorder;

• antisocial behaviour;

• behaviour that spoils the local environment 
like dumping rubbish (fly tipping), graffiti and 
dog fouling;

• misusing drugs and alcohol; and

• reoffending by adult and young offenders.

OUR PRIORITIES
We are required to carry out a review (a 
strategic assessment) of the problems in the 
District each year. We use this and other 
information to choose the most important 
problems that need to be tackled in the District 
in the next year to help us to work towards our 
vision.

We must then produce plans that show how we 
will work together to tackle these problems (our 
action plan).

As well as looking at the results of the review, 
we also need to think about what is happening 
at both a national and County-wide level. The 

Covid-19 pandemic and associated lockdowns 
have also had a big impact on our local 
communities, and will undoubtedly continue 
to produce more challenges over the next 12 
months.

NATIONAL DRIVERS

The Home Secretary sets out the key national 
threats in a document called the Strategic 
Policing Requirement. The currently recognised 
threats are terrorism, serious and organised 
crime, cyber security, threats to public order or 
public safety, civil emergencies, and child sexual 
abuse.

www.gov.uk/government/publications/strategic-
policing-requirement

We also need to consider how the work and 
priorities of the partnership are affected by 
any new laws, policies or guidance from the 
Government or other key bodies.

Some of the recent changes (and some that are 
due shortly) include:

• Introduction of the Domestic Abuse Act 
2021. This includes a power for senior police 
officers to issue a domestic abuse protection 
notice and for the courts to make a domestic 

abuse protection order, and a requirement 
for the District Council to publish a strategy 
for the provision of accommodation-based 
support in its area.

• Updated guidance on working together to 
prevent terrorism (“Channel Guidance”) was 
published in November 2020;

• Proposed introduction of a ‘Serious Violence 
Duty’ that will require local authorities, 
the police, fire and rescue authorities, 
specified criminal justice agencies and health 
authorities to work together to look at 
problems linked to serious violence in their 
area, and then produce and implement a 
strategy for respond to any issues that are 
identified.

• Proposed introduction of a new criminal 
offence of trespass.

• Changes to the probation system with a 
new National Probation Service taking on 
responsible for managing all those on a 
community order or licence following their 
release from prison in England and Wales 
from 26 June 2021.

Our Plan

P
age 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strategic-policing-requirement
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strategic-policing-requirement


6

The Home Office are also carrying out reviews 
of and consultations about political violence and 
disruption, pet theft, violence and abuse toward 
shop staff, and pre charge bail legislation.

COUNTYWIDE DRIVERS

We must also consider the picture across 
Staffordshire. We recognise that it is better 
to tackle some things, or provide some 
services by working together as a County 
and that other things are best addressed 
locally. The Staffordshire Safer and Stronger 
Communities Strategy Group brings together 
representatives from the community safety 
partnerships for each district as well as others 
from the responsible authorities and other key 
organisations. This allows us to work together 
to share resources, skills and experience across 
Staffordshire. 

The Staffordshire Safer and Stronger 
Communities Strategy Group follows a 
similar approach to the local partnerships and 
identifies key County-wide priorities that we 
will work together to tackle. These priorities, 
and information about how we will work 
together, are described in a document called the 
Staffordshire Community Safety Agreement. 
The current priorities (2021-23) are:

• Domestic Abuse 

• Vulnerable Persons and Contextual 
Safeguarding (incl. Alcohol, Drugs and Mental 
Health)

• Public Place Violence & Serious Violence

• Modern Slavery & Human Trafficking 

• Community Cohesion & Tackling Extremism

• Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 

• Fraud 

• Drug Supply & County Lines

www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Community/
Communitysafety/community-safety.aspx

County Lines is where illegal drugs are 
transported from one area to another, often 
across police and local authority boundaries. The 
‘County Line’ is the mobile phone line (or other 
“deal line”) used to take the orders of drugs. 
exploit children and vulnerable adults to move 
[and store] the drugs and money

The Staffordshire Police, Fire & Crime 
Commissioner identifies a set of priorities in the 
Safer, Fairer, United Communities 2017-20201  
strategy, and provides funding to Staffordshire 
Moorlands Community Safety Partnership to 
support delivery of those priorities. The current 
priorities are:

• Modern Policing – “A police force that is fit 
for a changing future”

• Early intervention – “Identifying and tackling 
root cases at the earliest opportunity”

• Support Victims and Witnesses – “Making 

it easier for victims and witnesses to get the 
support they need, when they need it”

• Managing offenders – “Preventing offending 
in the first place and reducing offending”

• Public confidence – “Creating opportunities 
for communities to shape policing, with 
greater transparency and openness to 
increase confidence in policing”

https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-
content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-
Final-9-6-17-6.pdf

COVID-19

The last 12 months have been extremely 
challenging for everyone. New legislation was 
introduced to limit public gatherings, close 
certain premises and so on to help stop the 
spread of the virus. Whilst the lockdowns led 
to a reduction in some crime types (such as 
shop theft and crimes linked to the night time 
economy), we saw an increase in some other 
problems. The large increase in the number of 
visitors to our rural areas led to problems such 
as increased littering, concerns about the use of 
barbecues, damage to dry stone walls, and traffic 
and parking issues. and the District experienced 
increased levels of fly-tipping, and we also saw 
some increase in neighbour disputes as people 
spent more time at home. 
1These priorities will be updated by the newly appointed 
Commissioner during 2021

Our Plan

P
age 30

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Community/Communitysafety/community-safety.aspx
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Community/Communitysafety/community-safety.aspx
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-6.pdf
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-6.pdf
https://staffordshire-pfcc.gov.uk/cms/wp-content/uploads/Police-and-Crime-Plan-Final-9-6-17-6.pdf


7

OUR PRIORITIES FOR 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS
We have identified the following priorities after 
considering our strategic assessment, and 
national and local drivers.

• Anti-Social Behaviour

• Domestic Abuse

• Rural Crime (including burglary and vehicle 
theft)

• Fraud

• Vulnerable People

We will also support the Staffordshire Safer 
and Stronger Communities Strategy Group to 
deliver the countywide priorities.

HOW WILL WE DO IT?
In this section, we will let you know our strategy 
(approach) for tackling our priorities and 
achieving our vision for the District.

We believe that we can achieve our vision if we:

PREVENT 

We recognise that some people and places 
within our District are at more risk than others 
from crime, antisocial behaviour, fires or other 
community safety problems. 

This includes people who are currently 
experiencing repeated problems or who are at 
greater risk because of their age or for other 
reasons such as physical, emotional or mental-
health difficulties. We want to make sure that we 
support these people whenever we can.

We also recognise that adults and young people 
who commit crime and cause other problems 
often have problems such as mental health 
problems, family problems, homelessness, drug 
problems, lack of skills and training and possibly 
debt and money problems. We can help people 
to stop offending by helping them with these 
problems.

We believe we can prevent problems by:

Promoting community safety and encouraging 
people to take positive action (such as not 
leaving valuables on show, locking their bikes, 
not starting fires in moorland areas);

• Working to address some of the issues that 
make it more likely that some people will 
commit crimes or cause other problems (such 
as mental health, financial problems substance 
misuse, and housing); and 

• Supporting and strengthening our 
communities (such as providing support 
to community and voluntary groups and 
activities). 

Our Plan

P
age 31



8

REDUCE

We will work together to tackle the problems 
that matter most to people in their local area.

We recognise that a small number of people 
can cause a lot of problems for others because 
of their behaviour. We will try and make sure 
that there is support for these people to help 
them to stop causing problems for others BUT 
we will do all we can to catch and convict those 
who, despite our offers of support, carry on 
committing crimes or causing other problems.

We believe that we can reduce the impact of 
problems by:

• taking early, preventative action to ‘nip 
problems in the bud’; 

• targeting enforcement action on those who 
cause the most problems for others.

• helping those people who most need our 
support to stop them from being a victim 
of crime, anti-social behaviour or other 
problems.

SUPPORT

Victims -  
Being a victim of crime, anti-social behaviour, 
a fire, or a road accident can be a horrible 
experience for someone to cope with. Everyone 
reacts differently and how you react depends 
on lots of different things. This includes the 
incident itself, the sort of person you are, 
things that have happened to you in the past, 
and the support you have around you. The 
effects can be even worse when you also have 
other problems to deal with such as a health 
or mental health problem, financial difficulties, 
bereavement, or housing problems. We think 
it is important the people are able to access 
support when and if they need it.

Offenders -  
If we can stop offenders committing more 
crimes then we will have a safer District with 
fewer victims of crime. Helping offenders to 
stop offending and get a job or training can also 
mean that they can then contribute to society, 
and improve their life chances and those of their 
children and families. We can also save money 
for tax payers if we can reduce the number of 
offenders because we will not have to spend as 
much money on things such as prisons.

We believe that we can support our community 
by making sure that:

• there are support services for those who 
have been the victim of crime and other 
problems;

• there are services for those people who are 
causing problems (offenders);

• making sure that people know how to access 
support.

Our Plan

P
age 32



9

HOW WILL WE WORK  
TOGETHER?
We believe that the best way for us to achieve 
our aims is by working together.

Each member of our partnership has their own 
services and targets that they need to deliver. 
But we know that many problems can only be 
solved by organisations and people working 
together.

This document sets out our overall plan 
for working together to make Staffordshire 
Moorlands a place where people feel safe and 
supported, the diversity of our community is 
valued, and our environment is protected. Each 
year we also develop a detailed plan (we call 
this our action plan) that will show in detail how 
we will work together to take action to tackle 
the key problems in our District. Many of these 
problems change over time so we will write a 
new action plan each year to make sure that 
we are always tackling the problems that matter 
most to you.

We will also meet regularly throughout the year 
and take action to tackle any new problems 
that come to our attention and that can only be 
solved by us working together.

Representatives from the responsible 
authorities, and from other key organisations, 
meet every three months to look at whether we 
are meeting the targets that we have set. We 
call this group our Strategy Group.

Other officers meet more regularly to look at 
the levels of problems within the District and 
report to the Strategy Group if it does not look 
like we will meet our targets.

We also want to involve local people wherever 
possible. This includes:

• asking you what the main problems are in 
your area;

• involving you in helping to decide how to 
solve problems;

• providing support if you want to get involved 
in action to improve your area; and

• letting you know what we’ve done to reduce 
problems in your area.

HOW WILL YOU KNOW THAT 
WE’VE DONE WHAT WE SET 
OUT TO DO?
We will publish our action plan each year so that 
you can see what we plan to do.

We will provide you with regular updates on 
what we have achieved throughout the year and 
a final update once each year has ended.

WHAT DO WE NEED TO 
DELIVER OUR PLAN?
We can deliver many actions within our 
plans without needing any additional money, 
equipment or other resources. We can 
do this by bringing together the people, 
skills, equipment and so on from different 
organisations, and from the local community, to 
work together to solve problems. This generally 
produces better results than when organisations 
try and tackle problems on their own.

We can also sometimes work together to 
think of new ways of tackling problems that 
don’t have an additional cost or we change the 
way that we normally respond to problems to 
produce better results.

In some cases, additional money is needed to 
tackle problems. If this is the case, then we use 
money provided by Staffordshire Police, Fire 
& Crime Commissioner or contributions from 
individual organisations when these are available. 

Our Plan

P
age 33



10

OUR PROMISE
We will work together to:

• Focus on the most important problems within the District. 
Each year we will carry out a strategic assessment to help us to identify priorities and then produce a plan that shows how we will 
tackle those priorities.

• Talk to you (our communities) about crime and disorder issues in your area and about what you think are the most important 
problems to tackle. 
We will use this information to make sure that we are focussing on the issues that are most important to you.

• Take early action to nip problems in the bud or ideally prevent them from happening in the first place.

• Take quick, firm action against those who break the law and cause problems in our District.

• Support those people within the District who most need our help and who may be at particular risk from crime, antisocial behaviour, 
fires or other community safety problems.

• Some people might be more vulnerable than others because of their age or for other reasons such as physical, emotional or 
mental-health difficulties. Others are vulnerable because they have been the victim of crime or antisocial behaviour.

• Work with people who break the law (offenders) to stop them from committing more crime (reoffending) in the future

• Work with you (our communities) and provide opportunities to work together to tackle problems.

• The District Council will hold at least one meeting each year to look at whether the partnership has done what it said it would.

• This meeting will be held in public so you know what is said.

• Provide you with information so that you know what we are doing to make Staffordshire Moorlands safer.

• This will include publishing a summary of our action plan.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 w
ha

t w
e 

do
Ta

ki
ng

 a
ct

io
n

Re
po

rt
in

g 
ba

ck
 to

 y
ou

Our Promise

P
age 34



RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES:

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, Staffordshire 
County Council, The Chief Officer of Staffordshire 
Police, Providers of probation services; and NHS North 
Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)

To work together to formulate and implement 
a strategy at district level for:

• Reducing crime and disorder in the area 
(including anti-social and other behaviour 
adversely affecting the local environment);

• Combatting the misuse of drugs, alcohol 
and other substances in the area; and

• Reducing re-offending in the area.

Purpose

Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership

STRATEGY GROUP MEMBERS:

Cabinet Member for Communities, SMDC (Chair); 
Executive Director, SMDC; County Councillor, SCC; LPT 
Commander, Staffordshire Police; Station Managers, 
Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service, Head of 
Engagement, Peak District National Park Authority; North 
Staffordshire Operations Manager, Support Staffordshire.

HOW THE DISTRICT COUNCIL SUPPORTS THE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP

CCTV

Environmental crime

Statutory Nuisance

Dangerous structures

Untidy sites

ASB Case management

Licensing

Diversionary activity

Planning (designing out 
crime)

Support for victims

• Housing

• Refuge support

Support for Voluntary & 
Community Sector

Preparation of partnership plan, monitoring expenditure, administration of meetings

Representation on County Groups

Licensing 
Commissioning housing support

Accommodation/homelessness prevention 
Finance, benefits and debt 
Health 
Support for health partnerships

CRIME & DISORDER

PARTNERSHIP SUPPORT

SUBSTANCE MISUSE

RE-OFFENDING  
(PATHWAYS TO 
PREVENTION)

Working together to make Staffordshire Moorlands a place where people feel safe and supported,  
the diversity of our community is valued, and our environment is protected

Our vision

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 
21 June 2021 

 

 
TITLE: 

 
Climate Change Plan (Part 1) 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Joe Porter - Portfolio Holder for 
Climate Change and Biodiversity 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Mark Forrester - Head of Democratic & 
Community Services 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
(All Wards); 

 
 

Appendices Attached – Appendix 1: Climate Change Plan (Part 1) 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 To present the Council’s 2021/22 Climate Change Plan (Part 1) ‘Towards 

Carbon Neutrality 2030’. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 To note and comment on the 2021/22 Climate Change Plan (Part 1) 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 On 10th July 2019, recognising the serious threat posed by climate change, 

the responsibility for our institutions, businesses and communities to eliminate 
net CO2 emissions and also the need to take immediate measures to prepare 
for climate change impacts Staffordshire Moorlands District Council declared a 
Climate Emergency. 

 
3.2 The Council has initiated a series of actions to procure data, analyse options 

and introduce measures to reduce its own Carbon emissions. 
 

3.3 The Plan has been developed in two parts: Part 1 considers the Council’s own 
greenhouse gas emissions and is presented to Cabinet for approval 
(Attached: Appendix 1). Part 2 considers the wider greenhouse  gas 
emissions from the District and remains in development with a target date for 
publication of November 2021. 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



  

4.1 Aim 4 of the Corporate Plan: To protect and improve the environment and 
respond to the climate emergency 
 
 

5. Alternative Options 
 
5.1 To approve the Climate Change Plan (Part 1). 
 
5.2 To amend or delay approval of the draft Climate Change Plan (Part1) pending 

further development (Not recommended – by its nature the Plan needs to be 
dynamic with further actions to be developed and included as more analysis is 
completed and in response to opportunities such as may arise from new 
Government policy initiatives). 

 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
No implications 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
Heads of Service working with their teams are responsible for the 
delivery of various elements of the Plan. As an additional resource 
the Council will be creating a specialist Climate Change Officer 
post. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
No implications 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The measures proposed are within current budgets including the 
Climate Change reserve fund.. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
No implications 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
The report recommends the approval of a plan to enable the 
Council to work towards its goal of carbon neutrality by 2030 in 
relation to its own greenhouse gas emissions. 
 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
All Heads of Service have been involved in the process of 
developing the Climate Change Plan (Part 1). The Climate Change 

Page 38



  

Subcommittee received and  commented on the action plan table  
(pages 16 to 28) of the plan (Appendix 1). 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
There is a risk that public expectation of the Council’s ability to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions at the district level is not 
matched by the Council’s current powers and resources.  
 

 
MARK TRILLO 

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

**INSERT NAME OF ANY PAPERS AND  WEB LINKS” Mark Forrester 
Head of Democratic & Community Services 
mark.forrester@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 
 
7. Detail 
 
7.1 In 2015, the UK adopted the Paris Agreement, committing to: 
 

 Strengthening the global response to the threat of climate change by 
keeping global temperature rise this century well below 2°C above pre 
industrial levels.  

 Encouraging efforts to limit the temperature increase even further to 1.5°C. 

 Tackling the climate crisis is a long-standing issue in the UK, reflected in 
the legally binding target in the 2008 Climate Change Act. This was 
updated in 2019 to reflect an updated target of net zero carbon by 2050. 

 
7.2 On 10th July 2019, recognising the serious threat posed by climate change, 

the responsibility for our institutions, businesses and communities to eliminate 
net CO2 emissions and also the need to take immediate measures to prepare 
for climate change impacts Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
unanimously passed the following resolution: 

 
That this Council declare a Climate Emergency as many councils have already 
done all over the UK and will undertake to: 

 
1. Start working with partners across the district and region towards making The 

Staffordshire Moorlands carbon neutral by 2030, taking into account emissions 
from both production and consumption. 

2. Call on The Government to provide guidance, powers and resources to make 
carbon neutrality possible by writing to local MPs and all relevant government 
departments. 

3. Requests that the Chair of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
establishes a subcommittee to undertake detailed research into the effects of 
climate change in the District, to include consideration of all relevant data and 

Page 39



  

monitoring information available, and to involve evidence from relevant 
stakeholders, with a view to recommending to the Council an effective, 
achievable and costed plan of actions to address climate change within the 
Staffordshire Moorlands. 

4. Ensure that all Council Bodies and Scrutiny Panels consider the impact of 
climate change and the environment when making decisions and reviewing 
Council policies and strategies. 

5. Review progress made on an annual basis via Scrutiny and Full Council. 
 
7.3 Actions to date 
 
7.3.1 Housing: The Council is a partner in the Staffordshire Warmer Homes project 

which successfully secured Green Homes Grant Local GHG LAD (round 1 
funding) and will deliver the Council’s allocation of GHG LAD round 2 funding 
in Staffordshire Moorlands. The partnership has also continued to deliver 
energy saving measures through other schemes and the Council continued to 
fund Beat the Cold as our key local partner in affordable warmth/fuel poverty.  
 

7.3.2 Leisure Centres: Parkwood Leisure has initiated a programme replacing lights 
with LED lights in all the leisure centres to save energy and reduce carbon 
emissions. The Council has commissioned work which includes an 
assessment of options and measures to reduce carbon emissions from the 
Council’s leisure centres. This is due to be completed in July 2021. 
 

7.3.3 Council fleet vehicles: AES, the Council’s direct services company, is currently 
trialling an electric light goods vehicle and an electric refuse vehicle. The 
Council has engaged with the Energy Saving Trust to undertake an analysis of 
the Council’s vehicle fleet and options for decarbonisation to inform the 
Councils fleet replacement programme. This is due to be competed in 
December 2021. 
 

7.3.4 New ways of working: The response to Covid-19 has accelerated the Council’s 
move to new ways of working – staff home working and increased use of 
virtual meetings have reduced staff busines miles by over 60%, an increase in 
customer self-service, reduced use of paper and printing. Work began in 2020 
to sustain these ways of working post pandemic. 
 

7.3.5 The Council has re-joined the Association of Public Service Excellence 
(APSE) and APSE Energy the specific climate change network. The Council 
has joined the UK100 ‘Countryside Climate Network’ group of local authorities 
with ambitious climate change targets. The Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change & Biodiversity also sits as a member of DEFRA’s Local Adaptation 
Advisory Panel. These networks provide an important resource of information 
and expertise. 
 

7.3.6 Waste recycling: the Council continues to be a high performer achieving a 
56.4% recycling rate, which is the highest in Staffordshire and in the top 30 in 
the country. 
 

7.3.7 The Council is engaging with a number of key agencies to assist with the 
development of the Council’s plans going forward – The Midlands Energy Hub, 

Page 40



  

the Energy Saving Trust, Keele University and the Centre for Alternative 
Technology. Keele University has been commissioned to deliver the ‘train the 
trainer’ Carbon Literacy programme to Council staff. 
 

7.3.8 The Council partnered and funded Staffordshire Wildlife Trust to assist in the 
development of the Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan. The Council’s Service 
Commissioning Team and AES grounds maintenance team  have been 
involved in the planting of 7 orchards as the start of a much wider community 
orchards initiative to plant many more orchards over the next few years. 
 

7.3.9 The Council has engaged with the Staffordshire Wildlife Trust, the Woodland 
Trust and the Tree Council to assist in producing a Tree Strategy as a core 
part of the Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan. This piece of work will include a 
tree planting target and ways in which this will address climate change. 
 

7.3.10 The Council’s Climate Change Sub Committee has been meeting, including 
topic based working groups, and has mainly focused on the District wide 
greenhouse gas emissions, the actions of key agencies and development of 
potential actions to be taken by the Council. This work will inform part 2 of the 
Council’s Climate Change Action Plan  

 
7.4 Data 
 
7.4.1 Council CO2 emissions: During 2021 further work will be undertaken to 

establish an as complete as possible estimate of the Council’s CO2 emissions, 
including direct and indirect emissions such as the CO2 embedded in the 
products and services the Council procures, technically referred to as Scope 
1,2 & 3 emissions. The current known figures for emissions related to Council 
buildings, fleet and travel for 2019/20 are included as an initial baseline in the 
plan for 2021/22. 

 
7.4.2  District wide CO2 emissions: The UK Government Department for Business, 

Energy and Industrial Strategy publishes annual data for the estimated CO2 
emissions by local authority area. This is currently available from 2005 to 
2018. The CO2 emission sources are split into four main categories – Industry 
and commerce, domestic, transport, land use and land use change and 
forestry. There are numerous sub categories which allow for a closer analysis. 

  
 The Council has commissioned Anthesis to produce an analysis of the District 
greenhouse gas emissions including the current baseline data and a series of 
projections based on scenarios – ‘do nothing’ through to ‘ambitious’ actions to 
address climate change locally. This analysis will be available in July 2021. 

 
7.5 The Climate Change Plan. 
 
 The plan will be in two parts. 
 
7.5.1 Part 1 (Attached: Appendix 1) concerns the Council’s own CO2 emissions – 

i.e. where SMDC has direct control and responsibility. Part 1 is in the form of 
an action plan to cover the period 2021/22 but leading to the Council’s 2030 
carbon neutral target.  

Page 41



  

 
7.5.2 Part 2 remains in development and will focus on the broader greenhouse gas 

emissions in the District. SMDC has levers of influence over some causes of 
the emissions but the role of others, including the community and voluntary 
sector, business sector and other statutory agencies such as the County 
Council and the Government, is critical. The Part 1 Plan includes a number of  
actions the Council is taking or planning to take and is presented to give a 
more complete picture of the Council’s climate change activity in 2021.  
 

7.5.3 Both parts of the plan will be published as one document in a more publicly 
accessible format in time for COP 26 in November 2021. 

 
7.5.4 It should be noted that both parts of the plan are living/dynamic documents 

with the potential for targets and actions to be added as work progresses and 
in response to opportunities – such as changes in Government policy or new 
funds. 

 
 
 

 

Page 42



© Crown copyright and database rights 2020. Licence No. 100018384

TOWARDS CARBON 
NEUTRALITY 2030

CLIMATE CHANGE PLAN 
2021/22
(PART 1)

P
age 43



2
CONTENTS

CONTENTS
Introduction ................................................................ 3

Background ............................................................... 4

The Paris Agreement ............................................. 5

UK Commitment....................................................... 6

Staffordshire Moorlands - Declaring a 
climate emergency ................................................ 8

Staffordshire Moorlands -  
Current emissions profile ...................................... 9

Carbon budget ........................................................11

Mapping the emissions of Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council ................................. 12

Initial activity .............................................................13

SMDC plan - 2021/22 ...........................................15

SMDC Emissions - council offices ................... 17

SMDC Emissions - other buildings .................19

SMDC Emissions - vehicles/travel .................20

SMDC Emissions - procurement ....................23

SMDC Emissions - operations .........................24

SMDC Emissions - enabling .............................25

Budgets ..................................................................... 27

Tackling greenhouse gas emissions  
across the district - towards the climate 
change action plan part 2 ................................28

P
age 44



3
INTRODUCTION

INTRODUCTION
Following the declaration of a climate 
emergency in 2019 the Council began work 
on the development of a plan of action to 
achieve its stated goal of achieving Net Zero 
greenhouse gas emissions by 2030. 

It was intended that the plan should also 
address how to enable the whole District to 
achieve that same goal, with the ambition of 
developing a full detailed plan of action in 
2020. 

The first part of that Climate Change 
Plan is set out in this document - Part 1 is 
concerned with how the Council achieves a 
net zero target for carbon dioxide equivalent 
emissions by 2030. 

Part 2 will be concerned with how the 
Council, working with others, intends to 
help the whole District to achieve net zero 
emissions and is due for publication by 
November 2021.

Inevitably, the Climate Change Plan (both 
Part 1 & Part 2) will be ‘dynamic’: that is, 
they will be added to and amended as 
more data is acquired; as we build on the 
initial options assessment work; and as new 
opportunities arise from the Government’s 
own policy response and from new 
technologies.

Throughout, this report refers to carbon 
dioxide equivalent emissions, or greenhouse 
gas emissions, recognising that there are 
several greenhouse gases, of which carbon 
dioxide is easily the most common, but not 
the most impactful. Tonnage of carbon 
dioxide equivalent emissions (CO2e) is the 
standard and international currency for 
representing these emissions, which the 
Department for Business, Energy & Industrial 
Strategy (BEIS) supports by regularly 
updating relevant conversion data

2030

P
age 45



4

BACKGROUND

CLIMATE CHANGE NOW

There is clear scientific evidence to show 
that climate change is happening and that 
cumulative emissions of CO2e from human 
activity are the principle driver of long-term 
global warming. Measurements show that 
the average temperature at the Earth’s 
surface has risen by about 1°C since the pre-
industrial period. Seventeen of the eighteen 
warmest years on record have occurred in 
the 21st century and each of the last three 
decades have been hotter than the previous 
one. This change in temperature has not 
been the same everywhere: the increase has 
been greater over land than over the oceans 
and has been particularly fast in the Arctic.

The UK is already affected by rising 
temperatures. The most recent decade 
(2008-2017) has been on average 0.8 °C 
warmer than the 1961-1990 average. All 
ten of the warmest years in the UK have 
occurred since 1990, with the nine warmest 

occurring since 2002.

Along with warming at the Earth’s surface, 
many other changes in the climate are 
occurring:

• warming oceans

• melting polar ice and glaciers

• rising sea levels

• more extreme weather events

Across the world we are already seeing 
devastating consequences from more 
frequent and intense droughts, storms, heat 
waves, rising sea levels, and melting glaciers 
upon people’s lives and livelihoods as well 
as whole communities and ecosystems. 
As climate change worsens, dangerous 
weather events are becoming more frequent 
or severe and the environmental, economic 
and social costs increasing.

BACKGROUND

P
age 46



5
THE PARIS AGREEMENT

THE PARIS AGREEMENT

The Paris Agreement is an agreement within 
the United Nations Framework Convention 
on Climate Change (UNFCCC) on climate 
change mitigation, adaptation, and 
finance, signed in 2016. The agreement was 
negotiated by representatives of 196 state 
parties at the 21st Conference of the Parties 
of the UNFCCC held near Paris, France, and 
adopted by consensus on 12th December 
2015. As of February 2021, 191 members of the 
UNFCCC are parties to the agreement. The 
United States withdrew from the agreement 
in 2020, but officially re-joined on 19th 
February 2021. 

The Paris Agreement’s long-term 
temperature goal is to hold the increase in 
global average temperature to well below 
2 °C above pre-industrial levels, and to 
pursue efforts to limit the increase to 1.5 °C, 
recognizing that this would substantially 
reduce the risks and impacts of climate 
change. This should be done by reducing 
emissions as soon as possible.  It also 
aims to increase the ability of parties to 

adapt to the adverse impacts of climate 
change, and make “finance flows consistent 
with a pathway towards low greenhouse 
gas emissions and climate-resilient 
development.”

Under the Paris Agreement, each country 
must determine, plan, and regularly report 
on the contribution that it undertakes to 
mitigate global warming. No mechanism 
forces a country to set a specific emissions 
target by a specific date, but each target 
should go beyond previously set targets.

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 
Change (IPCC) special report on the impacts 
of global warming of 1.5 °C above pre-
industrial levels was issued in October 2018. 
This report stated that, in order to remain 
within a 1.5 °C  increase, governments must 
cut emissions of greenhouse gases (globally) 
by 45% by 2030.

The UN Environment Programme, in their 
2019 Emissions Gap Report, found that the 
Nationally Determined Contributions were 
insufficient to ensure that global temperature 
rises stay below 1.5 °C, and that nations must 
triple their efforts in order to meet even a 2 
°C target. It also found that global emissions 
had increased in 2018 after a period of 
stability between 2014 and 2016. Since that 
Report, evidence is that greenhouse gas 
emissions embedded in the atmosphere 
continue to rise, despite the dislocating effect 
of the coronavirus.

A key finding of the report is that: ‘…non-
state and subnational action plays an 
important role in delivering national pledges. 
Emission reduction potential from non-state 
and subnational action could ultimately 
be significant, allowing countries to raise 
ambition.

P
age 47



6
UK COMMITMENT

UK COMMITMENT
The Climate Change Act 2008 introduced the 
UK’s first legally binding target for 2050 to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions by at least 
80% compared to 1990 levels. 

On 27th June 2019 the UK government 
amended the Climate Change Act and set 
a legally binding target to achieve net zero 
greenhouse gas emissions from across the 
UK economy by 2050 with five yearly carbon 
budgets to set actions and review progress.

The achievement of this target will bring 
to an end the UK’s contribution to climate 
change.

In April 2021, responding to growing evidence 
of the impact of climate change, the UK 
government upped its ambitions further by 
committing to set into law a more ambitious 
UK climate change target. Its policy now 
is to reduce UK emissions by 78% by 2035, 
compared to 1990 levels.

The Climate Change Committee, originally 
named the Committee on Climate Change, 
is an independent non-departmental public 
body, formed under the Climate Change Act 
to advise the United Kingdom and devolved 
Governments and Parliaments on tackling 
and preparing for climate change.

In December 2020 the CCC produced a 
report Local Authorities and the Sixth Carbon 
Budget which considered the role of local 
authorities in the achievement of the UK’s Net 
Zero target.

P
age 48



7
KEY MESSAGES

KEY MESSAGES
• The UK Government and local authorities 

share a common goal to deliver Net Zero.

• The Sixth Carbon Budget can only 
be achieved if Government, regional 
agencies and local authorities work 
seamlessly together.

• More than half of the emissions cuts 
needed rely on people and businesses 
taking up low-carbon solutions - decisions 
that are made at a local and individual 
level. Many of these decisions depend 
on having supporting infrastructure and 
systems in place. Local authorities have 
powers or influence over roughly a third of 
emissions in their local areas.

• Top-down policies go some way to 
delivering change, but can achieve a far 
greater impact if they are focused through 
local knowledge and networks.

• Four key things are needed to achieve 
this vision of collaborative delivery:

• Framework: An agreed framework for 
delivery for Net Zero incorporating local 
and national climate action

• Financing: Appropriate long-term 
financing to support local authorities in 
delivering Net Zero

• Flexibility: Local operational flexibility 
around how local areas address 
climate change

• Facilitation: coherent policy and powers 
for the facilitation of delivery

The report notes that over 300 local 
authorities have declared Climate 
Emergencies and a third have developed 
strategies and action plans to deliver 
ambitious targets by 2030 and 2050. More 
than half of these have a Net Zero target 
date of 2030.

P
age 49



8

Review progress made on an annual basis via Scrutiny and Full Council.

Start working with partners across the district and region towards making the 
Staffordshire Moorlands carbon neutral by 2030, taking into account emissions 

from both production and consumption.

Call on the Government to provide guidance, powers and resources to make carbon 
neutrality possible by writing to local MPs and all relevant government departments.

Requests that the Chair of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel establishes a subcommittee 
to undertake detailed research into the effects of climate change in the District, to include 

consideration of all relevant data and monitoring information available, and to involve evidence 
from relevant stakeholders, with a view to recommending to the Council an effective, achievable 

and costed plan of actions to address climate change within the Staffordshire Moorlands.

Ensure that all Council Bodies and Scrutiny Panels consider the impact of climate change and the 
environment when making decisions and reviewing Council policies and strategies.

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS - DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS – DECLARING A CLIMATE EMERGENCY 
On 10th July 2019 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council passed a resolution declaring a climate emergency as follows:

That this Council declare a Climate Emergency as many councils have already done all over the UK and will undertake to:

1
2

3

4

5

P
age 50



9
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS - CURRENT EMISSIONS PROFILE

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS -  
CURRENT EMISSIONS PROFILE
The Governments Department for Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) publishes an annual 
data set of data for Local Authority territorial CO2e emissions estimates. The latest data set is for 
2018.

2018 Emissions Industry and 
Commercial

Domestic Transport Land Use Net 
Emissions

Total

Kt CO2e 836.4 172.9 172.7 -18.7 1,163.3

Since 2005 CO2e emissions in the district have fallen. The decarbonisation of electricity supplies 
has played a significant part in this.

-200.0
-

200.0
400.0
600.0
800.0
1,000.0
1,200.0
1,400.0
1,600.0

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Industry and Commercial Total

Industry and

Commercial
Total

Domestic Total
Domestic Total

Transport TotalTransport Total
Land Use Net Emissions

Land Use Net Emissions

Grand Total

Grand Total

Overall emissions in Staffordshire Moorlands 
are very high compared to other districts 
and to the national average – as measured 
by emissions per head of population 
(per capita). The most significant factor 
is the presence in the district of cement 
manufacture – the chemical process 
involved produces large quantities of CO2e.

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS EMISSIONS (KT-CO2E) 2005 - 2018

P
age 51



10
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS - CURRENT EMISSIONS PROFILE

The following table provides a comparison with other Staffordshire districts and the data on emissions from large industrial installations which 
includes the cement works shows how this contributes to the District’s high CO2e emissions.

Staffordshire CO2e emissions estimates - 2018 (kt CO2e) 
Name Large Industrial 

Installations
Industry and 
Commercial Total

Domestic Total Transport Total Grand Total Per Capita 
Emissions (t)

Cannock Chase - 122.9 155.5 113.4 388.7 3.9

East Staffordshire 5.2 298.4 179.7 250.6 718.0 6.1

Lichfield 0.0 144.1 171.7 368.1 678.4 6.5

Newcastle-under-Lyme 4.9 186.2 200.0 365.1 748.8 5.8

South Staffordshire 4.9 207.6 173.3 525.9 892.7 8.0

Stafford 0.9 205.3 214.6 570.5 974.3 7.2

Tamworth 0.6 82.0 107.4 75.4 263.6 3.4

Staffordshire Moorlands 612.0 836.4 172.9 172.7 1,163.3 11.8

Staffordshire Total 628.4 2,082.9 1,375.2 2,441.7 5,827.9 6.7

P
age 52



11
CARBON BUDGET

CARBON BUDGET

Based on analysis by the Tyndall Centre for 
Climate Change Research, Staffordshire 
Moorland’s ‘fair’ contribution towards the 
Paris Climate Change Agreement would be 
to:

• Stay within a maximum cumulative 
carbon dioxide emissions budget of 5.0 
million tonnes (MtCO2e) for the period of 
2020 to 2100. At 2017 CO2e emission levels, 
Staffordshire Moorlands would use this 
entire budget within 7 years from 2020.

• Initiate an immediate programme of 
CO2e mitigation to deliver cuts in emissions 
averaging a minimum of -12.4% per year 
to deliver a Paris aligned carbon budget. 
These annual reductions in emissions 
require national and local action, and 
could be part of a wider collaboration 
with other local authorities.

• Reach zero or near zero carbon no later 
than 2043.

When setting targets for the District’s ‘fair’ 
contribution to UK targets the CO2e emissions 
from the chemical process involved in 
cement production are not included. 

Cement production is regarded as a national 
challenge; in part this recognises that the 
cement produced in Staffordshire Moorlands 
is in fact used elsewhere. 

  

30%
Transport

30%
Domestic

40%
Industry & Commercial

COMPARING EMISSIONS FOR STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS 2018 -  
EXCLUDING LARGE INDUSTRIAL INSTALLATIONS

P
age 53



12
MAPPING THE EMISSIONS OF STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

MAPPING THE EMISSIONS OF STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
The Council has calculated its CO2e emissions 
related to our main office buildings, leisure 
centres, fleet vehicles, staff travel during 
work and Councillors’ travel. A total of over 
2,284 tonnes of CO2e in 2019/20.  These 

represent part of the council’s overall CO2e 
emissions. During 2021/22 further work will be 
undertaken to ensure all data is included to 
form a baseline against which progress on 
CO2e reduction can be measured.

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

Council o�ces energy use

Leisure centres energy use

Council vehicles

Sta� travel

Councillor's travel

Technically for the purpose of reporting these figures cover two types of Greenhouse gas emissions – referred to as 
scope 1 and 2. Scope 1 covers direct emissions from owned or controlled sources – such as the fuel used by council 
vehicles. Scope 2 covers indirect emissions from things like the generation of electricity the Council purchases. There 
is a third type of emission, Scope 3, which includes all other indirect emissions that occur in a Council’s ‘value chain’ 
including both upstream and downstream emissions. Currently the Council does not have data on its Scope 3 
related greenhouse gas emissions.

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL CO2E EMISSIONS 2019/20 
(METRIC TONNES CO2E)

P
age 54



13
INITIAL ACTIVITY

INITIAL ACTIVITY
Since the declaration of a climate 
emergency a number of ‘enabling’ actions 
have already taken place:

TRAINING: 

(1) Four climate science lectures delivered by 
Keele University to Members, Parish Councils 
and Council staff. (2) The Council has an 
agreement with Keele University to provide 
training for staff.

DATA: 

(1) The Council has access to the Department 
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
estimates of carbon emissions by sector 
(2005 – 2018).  (2) The Council has data for 
fleet vehicles, staff travel and energy supplies 
but further work is required to ensure all 
emissions are included.

TOOLS: 

The Council has access to:  
(1) Carbon budget tool - produced by 
the Tyndall Centre and funded by the 
government this tool identifies the District 
wide Carbon budget and CO2e reduction 
trajectory to align with the UK commitment

(2) SCATTER – a tool developed to model 
locally the impact of policy measures by key 
sectors (business, transport, housing etc.) and 
trajectories to carbon net zero 

(3) A form has been created for the 
Modern Gov. report management 
system for managers to use to set out the 
climate change implications of all report 
recommendations.

POWERS, BLOCKS AND 
ENABLERS: 

All Council Heads of Service have contributed 
to an initial assessment of the powers the 
Council has, the opportunities, the blocks, 
the potential enablers and the potential for 
the Council to take action now to reduce 
greenhouse gases and respond to climate 
change. 

P
age 55



14
INITIAL ACTIVITY

PARTNERSHIP AND ENGAGEMENT:

Meetings have been held and attended to 
lay the foundations for future partnership 
and joint work on climate change: 

(1) Attended a meeting of the Moorlands 
Climate Action Group 

(2) Spoken to a meeting of the Parish 
Assembly 

(3) Met Staffordshire County Council 
Cabinet  Member and Cabinet Members in 
Newcastle and Stoke –on-Trent 

(4) Met with Midlands Energy Hub regional 
Senior Energy Projects Officer to explore 
technical and business support for local 
projects such as solar farms and EV charge 
points 

(5) Meetings with Staffordshire Wildlife Trust 
to develop a formal partnership to deliver 
the Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan and 
Nature Recovery Network 

(6) Met with Professor Zoe Robinson of Keele 
University to obtain support from University 

(7)  Meeting with Lafarge and JCB to 
understand their challenges and to secure 
their engagement 

(8) Joined UK100 and APSE Energy 

(9) Meetings with the Tree Council and 
Woodland Trust.

The Council’s Climate Change Sub-
committee was established to help develop 
the Council’s Climate Change Plan.

Cllr Porter meets Staffordshire Wildlife 
Trust at the Roaches

P
age 56



15
SMDC PLAN - 2021/22

SMDC PLAN – 2021/22
The Council’s Plan of Action focuses on the 
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions 
from the use of Council buildings (heat and 
power); travel and transport (Council vehicles 
and business travel by staff and Councillors); 
and procurement (the greenhouse gas 
emissions associated with the products and 
services we buy). 

In addition, the Plan includes supporting 
activity such as the development of relevant 
staff skills; revising the Council’s policies and 
strategies across the range of its activities 
and decision making processes to ensure 
climate change is always considered; and 
performance management to ensure 
progress is measured and reported. 

Offsetting is not considered in the Plan at this 
time. The priority is to focus on the reduction 
of the Council’s greenhouse gas emissions 
(Scope 1,2,&3) to as close to zero as possible. 
Once this element of the Plan is developed 
more fully the possibility of actions to offset 
the Council’s greenhouse gas emissions will 
be considered.

2021/22 activity in relation to Council owned 
buildings involves a full assessment of 
building conditions, future requirements, and 
options for reducing CO2e emissions. A report 
with recommendations for action will inform 
specific plans and future CO2e reduction 
targets which will feature in the 2022/23 
updated Plan. There is an expectation that 
quick wins can be identified and that where 
these produce cost savings they may be 
implemented within the current financial 
year.

P
age 57



16
SMDC PLAN - 2021/22

2021/22 activity in relation to the Council’s 
vehicles involves working with the Energy 
Saving Trust and AES (the Council owned 
company responsible for waste collection, 
street scene and parks maintenance) 
to assess the Council’s needs, options 
in relation to developing technology 
(electric/ hydrogen/other), the investment 
in infrastructure required to support new 
vehicles and the production of a fleet 
replacement strategy up to 2030. 

This assessment is expected to be 
available in late 2021 or early 2022 and 
in the meantime, where vehicles must be 
replaced, the Council is choosing the lowest 
CO2e emitting vehicles. The Council has 
undertaken an initial trial of an electric light 
goods vehicle and an electric waste vehicle.

The Council has set a specific 2021/22 target 
for the reduction in CO2e from business miles 
undertaken by staff based on implementing 
new ways of working that have been 
developed in response to the Covid-19 
pandemic and which saw the Council’s CO2e 
emissions from staff travel reduce by over 
60%

2021/22 activity in relation to Council 
procurement is focused on developing 
a new procurement strategy to include 
measures to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. Currently the Council does not 
have baseline data or estimates for CO2e 
emissions related to procurement.

P
age 58



17
SMDC EMISSIONS - COUNCIL OFFICES

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

BUILDINGS

Council offices SMDC 
Gas and 
electriAcity = 421 
metric tonnes

The current 
electricity 
supply source 
mix includes 
47% renewable 
and 9% nuclear

Reduce 
energy use/ 
improve 
energy 
efficiency

Improve 
insulation 
-reduce waste.

Use of 
technology 
- LEDs and 
improved control 
systems.

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Capital 
Programme

Commission expert 
advice to review 
the estate and 
determine the 
action plan. By 
April 2022

Identify early cost 
saving initiatives. – 
Aug 2021

Develop a costed 
plan for remaining 
measures. April 
2022

Head of Assets

Head of Finance

Early cost saving 
measures can be 
identified.

An external 
consultant can be 
employed to meet 
the deadline.

The potential for 
energy reduction 
will be set by April 
2022

The target 
for 2030 is as 
close to zero as 
possible (this to 
be determined 
during the 2021 
assets review and 
detail including 
milestones to be 
included in the 
2022 plan update)

Staff practice 
– Ensure all 
staff are taking 
practical 
measures to 
reduce energy 
use.

Organisational 
Development 
Strategy

Nominate service 
champions. 

Provide Carbon 
Literacy training  
to all  Heads 
of Service 
and Service 
Champions.

Regular 
awareness raising 
communication.

Head of 
Transformation

Head of 
Community and 
Climate Change

P
age 59



18
SMDC EMISSIONS - COUNCIL OFFICES

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

Council offices 
continued

Switch to 
Green energy

Purchase green 
energy

Procurement 
Strategy

ESPO Framework 
– use the annual 
negotiation to seek 
an improved green 
energy supply.  

Head of Finance The energy mix 
from current 
provider (ESPO 
contract) will 
improve year on 
year – to end of 
contract in 2024 
when 100% green 
energy will be 
purchased.

2024 –  
100% green

Generate green 
energy for 
Council property

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Capital 
programme

Investigate 
potential as part 
of the review  - for 
solar panels on 
Council property.

Head of Assets The potential 
contribution of 
generated energy 
will be identified 
and measures 
installed over a 
period of time up to 
2024.

Project complete 
by 2024

Alternative 
heating

Investigate 
alternative heating 
systems - ground 
source heat pumps 
etc by April 2022

Determined 
during the 2021 
assets review and 
detail including 
milestones to be 
included in the 
2022 plan update

P
age 60



19
SMDC EMISSIONS - OTHER BUILDINGS

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

Leisure Centres 
Council owned 
buildings 
not directly 
controlled.

SMDC 
(2019/20):

Electricity – 
564.2 metric 
tonnes

Gas – 628.2 
metric tonnes

Reduce 
energy use/ 
improve 
energy 
efficiency

Switch to 
Green energy

All above 
measures

Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Leisure contract

Leisure 
Improvement 
Plan

Capital 
Programme

Work with LC 
partners to 
develop a plan for 
each centre and 
agree investment 
and targets.

Engage consultants 
to advise on 
appropriate 
energy saving/ 
green energy 
measures as part 
of the Leisure 
Transformation 
Plan

Head of Service 
Commissioning

Head of Assets

Head of Finance

In the current 
contract  
responsibility for 
utilities is with 
the contractor – 
changes will need 
to be negotiated.

The current contract 
has created an 
incentive towards 
energy efficiency 
– e.g. LED lights 
have been installed 
– and this trend will 
continue.

Determined 
during the 2021 
leisure centre 
review and 
detail including 
milestones to be 
included in the 
2022 plan update.

Other buildings TBD TBD TBD Asset 
Management 
Strategy

Baseline data for 
other buildings to 
be assessed by 
December 2021.

Review of assets 
completed and 
plan developed by 
April 2022

Head of Assets TBD Determined 
during the 2021 
assets review and 
detail including 
milestones to be 
included in the 
2022 plan update

P
age 61



20
SMDC EMISSIONS - VEHICLES/TRAVEL

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

VEHICLES/ TRAVEL

Fleet vehicles

SMDC

637 metric 
tonnes

Reduce CO2e 
from Fleet 
vehicles

Reduce miles 
travelled. 

Efficient planning 
of vehicle 
movements & 
use

Invest in the 
infrastructure 
to support EV’s 
or hydrogen 
vehicles.

Purchase green 
vehicles

Fleet 
Procurement 
Programme

AES contract

Capital 
Programme

Complete analysis 
of options. Dec 
2021

Vehicles purchased 
in 2021 to be lowest 
carbon emitting 
within available 
budget.

Identify the 
Investment in 
infrastructure 
required to support 
switch to green 
vehicles and 
develop the capital 
programme.

Trial fuel additives 
to improve 
performance and 
EV alternatives 
when available.

Head of Service 
Commissioning

Head of Finance

Dependent upon 
the Energy Saving 
Trust being able 
to complete its 
analysis work within 
the timescale.

Technological 
developments 
providing an 
alternative to petrol/
diesel vehicles will 
accelerate but it 
is uncertain this 
will fully provide 
alternatives by 
2030.

The infrastructure 
to support such 
vehicles will form 
part of the Council’s 
capital programme.

Fleet vehicles are 
replaced on an 
ongoing basis as 
they reach the end 
of their productive 
life.

To be determined 
during the 2021 
fleet review and 
detail including 
milestones to be 
included in the 
2022 plan update

2030 – All fleet 
vehicles to run on 
green fuels. But 
dependent on 
technology.

P
age 62



21
SMDC EMISSIONS - VEHICLES/TRAVEL

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

Vehicles/travel 
continued

Business miles: 
SMDC & HPBC 
staff combined

CO2e – 64.59 
metric tonnes.

Mileage – 
290,870 miles.

Reduce 
Business 
miles and 
switch travel 
mode and 
use EVs.

Creative 
incentives in the 
expenses system, 
car loan scheme, 
essential car user 
designation and 
lease cars to 
switch to EV’s

Use of the pool 
car.

Encourage 
remote working 
and virtual 
meetings (as a 
default).

Install EV 
charging points 
at Council offices.

HR Policies

Covid recovery 
Plan 
Car Park Strategy

Develop the 
Council’s travel 
policy and plan. 
December 2021

Develop the 
Council’s policy 
to support 
remote working 
and investment 
required in IT to 
support, including 
virtual/hybrid 
meetings. Draft - 
April 2021

Moorlands House 
EV charge points 
(considered as 
part of the car 
park strategy 
development work)

Head of OD & 
Transformation

Head of Assets

There has been 
a 67% reduction 
during the Covid 
period to date 
compared to 2019.

The assumption 
is that in 2021 a 
proportion of this 
reduction will be 
maintained by 
changed working 
practices.

Beyond 2021 the 
assumption is 
that measures to 
switch to green 
vehicles/travel will 
increasingly reduce 
CO2e

2021 - Maintain 
reduction at 40% 
from 2019 level.

2025 –

75% reduction from 
2019 level.

2030 - 100% 
reduction (with 
any residual CO2e 
emissions subject 
to offsetting)

P
age 63



22
SMDC EMISSIONS - VEHICLES/TRAVEL

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

Vehicles/travel 
continued

Travel to work

CO2e is not 
currently known.

Reduce CO2 
from staff 
travel to work

Encourage 
walking and 
cycling, use of 
public transport, 
and car sharing.

Support home/ 
remote working

HR Policies Undertake a 
Staff survey 
and establish a 
monitoring system.

Consider options 
to support or 
incentivise green 
alternatives.

Run awareness 
campaigns

Head of OD & 
Transformation

2020/21 is an 
atypical year in 
which to establish a 
baseline and makes 
setting a specific 
CO2e target difficult 
– propose to use 
2019. The target 
could include the 
proportion of staff 
switching transport 
modes or reporting 
reduced travel with 
more specific CO2e 
targets to follow.

CO2e target TBD

2021

30% of staff report 
a reduction in 
travel to work 
by petrol/diesel 
engine car. (from 
estimated 2019 
level)

2025

60% of staff report 
a reduction in 
travel to work 
by petrol/diesel 
engine car. (from 
estimated 2019 
level)

SMDC 
Councillors

1.69 metric 
tonnes

Reduce 
Business 
Miles and 
switch travel 
mode

Encourage 
walking and 
cycling, use of 
public transport, 
and car sharing.

Continued use of 
virtual meetings 
where permitted.

Consultation with 
Councillors – by 
September 2021

Head of 
Democratic  
Services

Current Covid 
related regulations 
which allow for 
virtual meetings 
ended in May 2021.

Other meetings are 
within the Council’s 
control..

2021

TBD

2030 
TBD

P
age 64



23
SMDC EMISSIONS - PROCUREMENT

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

PROCUREMENT TBD Minimise 
the amount 
of products 
purchased.

Choose low 
carbon/ 
carbon 
neutral 
products 
where 
possible. Use 
the principles 
of - reduce, 
reuse, recycle, 
buy local.

(Include 
measures from 
the strategy 
when agreed)

Develop 
measures 
to assess at 
planning stage 
the CO2e in 
goods, products 
and services to 
be procured.

Encourage staff 
to reduce waste.

Procurement 
Strategy

Consultation on 
revised strategy. 
June/July 2021.

Commission an 
assessment of 
CO2e embedded in 
procured products 
and  services – 
to identify the 
baseline.

Training for all 
managers.

Staff training 
and awareness 
campaign.

Head of Finance Baseline measures 
will be developed.

In response to 
customer demand 
and/or legislation 
information about 
CO2e embedded 
in products will 
be increasingly 
become available.

To be determined 
as part of the 
development of 
the new strategy 
in 2021 and 
detail including 
milestones to be 
included in the 
2022 plan update.

Use 
contractors 
/suppliers 
who working 
or achieving 
carbon 
neutrality.

Develop 
measures 
to assess 
contractors 
bidding for work.

Provide support 
to develop local 
companies ability 
to win contracts 
with the council.

Engage with 
current contractors/ 
suppliers to assess 
their practice 
in relation to 
achieving carbon 
neutrality.

Local contractors 
have the 
advantage of lower 
CO2e emissions 
from travel.

P
age 65



24
SMDC EMISSIONS - OPERATIONS

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

OPERATIONS The CO2e 
emissions 
related to 
this section 
are identified 
elsewhere 
(energy/ 
buildings, 
vehicles/travel, 
procurement).  

Improve the 
management 
of the 
Council’s 
green 
spaces/parks 
etc.

Reduce grass 
cutting.

Increase tree 
cover.

Improve wildlife 
habitats and 
biodiversity.

Parks and 
open spaces 
management 
policies.

Tree planting 
policy.

SMDC - Pilot 
changes to current 
practice working 
with Staffordshire 
Wildlife Trust. 

Integrate changes 
into the AES 
contract.

Develop a Tree 
Strategy. (Note this 
strategy is also 
part of the Part2 
Climate Change 
actions)

Head of Service 
Commissioning

Head of 
Development 
Control

External support 
will be obtained to 
develop the policy 
and strategy.

Measures such 
as reduced grass 
cutting, tree planting 
and biodiversity 
improvements 
contribute to 
reduced CO2e 
emissions, carbon 
sequestration and 
adaptation to the 
impact of climate 
change.

To be determined 
following pilot 
work in 2021/22.

OFFSETTING Currently offsetting is not part of the plan. The priority at this stage is to identify measures to reduce the Council’s CO2e emissions. Part of the Council’s plan 
and activities in relation to the management of parks and open spaces could result in the sequestration of CO2e but targets for offsetting will be addressed 
at a later stage.

P
age 66



25
SMDC EMISSIONS - ENABLING

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

ENABLING Decisions Ensure 
Climate 
change 
impact is 
considered 
as part of 
all Council 
decisions.

All Council 
decision reports 
to include a 
section on the 
climate change 
related impact of 
the decision.

All managers 
to be trained 
to assess the 
climate change 
implications in 
their work.

Declaration 
of a climate 
emergency.

Introduce the 
climate change 
assessment 
reporting tool 
into the Modern 
Gov report 
management 
system.

Provide specific 
training to 
managers in the 
use of the tool 
and specifically 
in relation to their 
service.

Head of 
Democratic 
Service.

Head of 
Community and 
Climate Change.

Head of 
Transformation

Policies Ensure key 
Council 
strategies 
and policies 
support the 
Council’s 
Commitment 
to Carbon 
zero by 2030

Integrate 
climate change 
commitments 
into key strategies 
and policies.

Declaration 
of a climate 
emergency.

Asset Management 
Strategy

Procurement 
Strategy

Fleet Replacement 
Programme

Head of Assets

Head of Finance

Head of Service 
Commissioning

There will be 
opportunities during 
the year to review 
other policies.

P
age 67



26
SMDC EMISSIONS - ENABLING

SMDC EMISSIONS
Baseline

CO2e (2019 
unless 
otherwise 
stated):

Aim Measures Council Strategy/
Plan

Activity - 2021/22 Responsibility Risks/ 
assumptions

Target (CO2e)

ENABLING 
continued

Skills Ensure staff 
have the skills 
required to 
contribute to 
the Council’s 
carbon zero 
target.

Staff / Member 
induction, training 
& awareness

HR Strategies 
and Plans

Communication 
strategy

Make carbon 
literacy training 
available to 
all staff and 
Members.

Provide service 
specific training to 
staff.

Provide regular 
updates and 
awareness 
raising through 
Council internal 
communications 
including team 
meetings

Head of 
Transformation

Head of 
Community and 
Climate Change

Ensure the Council 
has sufficiently 
detailed data on its 
own CO2e emissions 
and that of the 
wider district..

Performance 
Management

Ensure the 
Council’s 
performance 
on climate 
change is 
regularly 
reported to 
Councillors.

Develop the 
Councils climate 
change data set.

Integrate climate 
change targets 
into the Council’s 
performance 
reporting system.

Identify areas of 
weakness and 
commission work 
where necessary to 
fill data gaps.

Integrate climate 
change targets 
into the Council’s 
performance 
reporting system

Head of 
Transformation

P
age 68



27
BUDGETS

BUDGETS
The Council has established an earmarked 
reserve to fund the initial development 
and delivery of its Climate Change Plan. 
The reserve will be added to each year 
depending on the Council’s financial 
situation. 

Most of the actions identified for 2021/22 
will be funded from within the established 
Council Service budgets rather than from a 
specific climate change budget. The work 
being undertaken this year to assess Council 
buildings and the Council’s fleet of vehicles 
will identify measures that will be included in 
the Council’s Capital Investment Programme.

The specific budgets related to development 
of the Plan for the financial year 2021/22 are 
as follows:

 £25,000 Climate Change Reserve Fund

 £20,000 Community grants  
  (Orchard Fund and ECO 
  Schools)

 £12,000 Fuel poverty (Beat the Cold)

 £1,500 Local Authority Energy 
  Partnership

 £2,300 APSE (Energy subscription)

P
age 69



28
TACKLING GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ACROSS THE DISTRICT -  

TOWARDS THE CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN PART 2

TACKLING GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ACROSS THE DISTRICT -  
TOWARDS THE CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN PART 2
Nationally the Climate Change Committee 
in its December 2020 report stated that 
local authorities are directly responsible for 
between 2- 5% of their local area’s emissions.

However, local authorities have many levers 
that can be used to deliver wider local action 
to reduce emissions and prepare local areas 
for a changing climate (in our case “local 
authorities” means the District and County 
Council together). Key powers and duties are

• An overarching role to support the 
economic, health and social wellbeing of 
communities

• Planning powers over buildings and 
transport

• Enforcement of building regulations

• Powers to ensure buildings meet basic 
energy efficiency standards

• Duties to prevent homelessness and 
prevent hazards in housing

• Duties to manage risk including climate 
risks such as flooding

• Duties and powers to protect the 
environment, wildlife and heritage

• Duties to collect and dispose of waste

• Borrowing and investment powers

The Council’s Climate Change Sub 
Committee has been working through the 
wider issue of greenhouse gas emissions 
from the District, considering greenhouse 
gas emissions from travel and transport, 
housing, industry, agriculture, land use and 
biodiversity, waste, and energy production. 

They have received evidence from 
many outside agencies and experts and 
considered suggested actions which could 
reduce emissions.

P
age 70



29
TACKLING GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS ACROSS THE DISTRICT -  

TOWARDS THE CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN PART 2

The important role played by community 
and voluntary organisations has been 
highlighted and the Sub Committee has 
been looking at what the Council may be 
able to do to assist, control or influence 
greenhouse gas emissions locally, as well as 
what is needed from Government and other 
agencies.

It is only through the joint efforts of many 
agencies, businesses and local voluntary 
organisations working together that 
greenhouse gas emissions from the District 
can be reduced to Net Zero. 

The Council has a part to play but it does 
not, on its own, have the power to make 
these things happen. The Council will be 
drawing together the results of the Sub 
Committee’s work, together with the results of 
public consultation into Part 2 of the Climate 
Change Plan to be published in the autumn 
of 2021. 

The Council has already identified a number 
of actions that it expects to take that will 
feature in part 2 of the Plan, actions which 

will assist the other agencies, businesses 
and individual households to reduce their 
greenhouse gas emissions. This includes

• Funding work by the Staffordshire Wildlife 
Trust to assist the Council to develop its 
Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan

• Establishing two community budgets – 
the Community Orchards Fund and the 
Community Climate Change Grants Fund.

• Work on a new Car Parking Strategy – 
which will include options in relation to 
the installation of Electric Vehicle charging 
points on Council owned car parks.

• The Council has commissioned work by 
Anthesis to produce data on the District’s 
greenhouse gas emissions and to model 
the pathways to reduce these emissions 
locally in line with the UK’s current 
commitments to net zero.

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2021/22 

 

Date Items for Agenda 
21 June 2021  

 Update - Levels of Pollution and the Air Quality Action Plan 

 Refreshed Community Safety Strategy 

 Climate Change Action Plan 

12 July 2021  

 Your Housing Group Regular Update - TBC 

 Refreshed Environment Enforcement Policy 

  

06 Sep 2021  

  

  

  

08 Nov 2021  

  

  

  

24 Jan 2022  

 Local Policing Team Annual Update - TBC 

  

07 March 2022  

 

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually and Additional Items 
Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  

Local Policing Team  Annual Update  

Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update  

Fire & Rescue  Service Annual Update  

Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update   

Assets of Community Value 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	7 Refreshed Community Safety Strategy
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Our Vision
	Who are we?

	Our Plan
	What do we need to do?
	Our Priorities
	National drivers
	Countywide drivers
	Covid-19


	How will we do it?
	PREVENT 
	REDUCE
	SUPPORT


	How will we work 
together?
	How will you know that we’ve done what we set out to do?
	What do we need to deliver our plan?

	Our Promise
	Planning what we do
	Taking action
	Reporting
back to you



	Appendix C

	8 Climate Change Action Plan (Part 1)
	Appendix 1
	Introduction
	Background
	The Paris Agreement
	UK commitment
	Staffordshire Moorlands - Declaring a climate emergency
	Staffordshire Moorlands - Current emissions profile
	Carbon budget
	Mapping the emissions of Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
	Initial activity
	SMDC plan - 2021/22
	SMDC Emissions - council offices
	SMDC Emissions - other buildings
	SMDC Emissions - vehicles/travel
	SMDC Emissions - procurement
	SMDC Emissions - operations
	SMDC Emissions - enabling
	Budgets
	Tackling greenhouse gas emissions across the district - 
towards the climate change action plan part 2


	9 Work Programme

